BYLAWS OF ROUTE 66 CRUISERS OF CLAREMORE, INC. (An Oklahoma Non-Profit Corporation)

Article I - Name

The name of the corporation (hereafter called the "Corporation") is ROUTE 66 CRUISERS OF CLAREMORE, INC.

Article II – Purpose of the Corporation

The Corporation is organized exclusively for charitable, educational and scientific purposes, including, for such purposes, the making of distributions to organizations that qualify as exempt organizations under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, or the corresponding section of any future federal tax code, and the Corporation shall not engage in any activity that is not allowed to an organization qualified under Section 501(c)(3) of said Code. The nature of the activities to be conducted and the purposes to be promoted or carried out by the Corporation are as follows:

- a) To benefit local communities;
- b) To foster interest in classic, antique, special interest and modified motor vehicles;
- c) To disseminate information pertaining to car events to its members and the community, encourage attendance at such events and sponsor a local car show; and
- d) To raise funds for charitable purposes and charitable organizations in connection with the foregoing interests.

Article III - Nature of the Corporation

This Corporation does not have authority to issue capital stock. This Corporation is not for profit, and as such the corporation does not afford pecuniary gain, incidentally or otherwise, to its members. No part of the net earnings of the corporation shall inure to the benefit of, or be distributable to its members, trustees, directors, officers, or other private persons, except that the Corporation shall be authorized and empowered to pay reasonable compensation for services rendered and to make payments and distributions in furtherance of the purposes set forth below. No substantial part of the activities of the Corporation shall be the carrying on of propaganda, or otherwise attempting to influence legislation, and the Corporation shall not participate in, or intervene in (including the publishing or distribution of statements) any political campaign or on behalf of or in opposition to any candidate for public office. Notwithstanding any other provision of these Bylaws, the Corporation shall not carry on any activities not permitted to be carried on (a) by a corporation exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, or the corresponding section of any future federal tax code. Upon the dissolution of the Corporation, assets shall be distributed for one or more exempt purposes within the meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, or the corresponding section of any future federal tax code, or shall be distributed to the federal, state or local government, for a public purpose.

Article IV - Corporate Organization

The management of the affairs of the Corporation shall be vested in a Board of Directors. Actions of the Board of Directors may be taken without a meeting upon the unanimous written consent of the Board of Directors.

- **A.** The Board of Directors shall consist of the Officers of the Corporation.
- **B.** The Officers of the Corporation shall be a President, a Vice President, a Secretary and a Treasurer. The Board of Directors may designate additional offices and committees together with the qualifications and duties of such additional offices and committees.

C. Eligibility of Officers:

- (1) Must be member of the Corporation in good standing;
- (2) Nominated by member(s) in good standing;
- (3) Have a willingness to serve in the capacity for which he/she is nominated; and
- (4) Be elected by a majority vote of the members in good standing voting in the election of Officers.

D. Election of Officers:

Election of Officers shall be by simple majority vote of all members in good standing and present at a meeting at a reasonable date and time designated by the Board of Directors for the election of Officers to be held on or before December 31 of each year. No Officer shall serve for more than two (2) consecutive terms, and such Officer shall be ineligible for re-election to the office until the expiration of at least one (1) year. Provided, however, should no member volunteer as a candidate for any office, then the individual holding such office for the previous term may be re-elected to such office by simple majority vote of all members in good standing and present at such meeting.

E. Duties of the President:

- (1) To call and conduct open, or special meetings of the membership and/or meetings of the Board of Directors.
- (2) To assist in fundraising, and to monitor all receipts, disbursements, and incurred expenses as they pertain to the activities of the Corporation.
- (3) To establish and assist various committees for the purposes of fundraising and operations of the Corporation.

F. Duties of the Vice President:

(1) To call and conduct open, or special meetings in the absence of the President.

(2) To assist in fundraising, and to monitor all receipts, disbursements and incurred expenses as they pertain to the activities of the Corporation.

G. Duties of the Secretary:

- (1) To record and maintain the minutes of each meeting of the general membership and of the Board of Directors.
- (2) To read minutes from previous meetings at each open meeting.
- (3) Establish and maintain a membership roster with mailing addresses, email addresses, telephone numbers, etc.
- (4) To assist in record keeping, and fundraising.

H. Duties of the Treasurer:

- (1) To maintain accurate and accessible financial records pertaining to all matters of receipts and disbursements of the Corporation.
- (2) To possess, and maintain the Corporation's checkbook in good balance, make and record deposits in accordance with reasonable and acceptable business practices.
- (3) To report current financial standings of the Corporation at each open meeting.
- I. Term of Officers shall be one year.

J. Removal of an Officer:

A two-thirds majority vote of the members of the Corporation in good standing is required for the removal of any Officer.

K. Replacement of an Officer:

Replacement of an Officer during term of service shall be by the affirmative vote of a majority of members in good standing attending an open meeting or special meeting with notice to the members.

L. Bond:

The Treasurer shall, if required by the Board of Directors and at the Corporation's expense and in amount determined by the Board of Directors, give to the Corporation such security for the faithful discharge of the duties of the Treasurer.

Article V: Membership

Membership of the Corporation shall be open to any person desiring to support the above purpose of the Corporation. The Board of Directors may from time to time, establish different classifications of membership.

A. Membership Dues:

Membership dues and fees shall be determined by the Board of Directors. Adjustments shall be made at the discretion of the Board of Directors at the beginning of each term. Dues may not be increased from the previous year's dues without an affirmative vote of a majority of the membership. The term of membership shall be one year.

B. Member in Good Standing:

A member in good standing is defined as any member whose dues are current at the time of any vote being taken.

Article VI: Membership Meetings

A minimum of four open meetings shall be conducted during each term. The time and location of such open meetings will be determined by the Board of Directors, with public notice given by the Secretary.

Meetings shall be conducted from an established agenda outlined as follows:

- Call to order
- Reading of previous minutes
- Treasurer's Report
- Old Business
- New Business
- Adjournment

The membership present at a properly announced meeting shall constitute a quorum, provided, however, a quorum may not be less than 8 members in good standing (including Officers).

Article VII: General Financial Guidelines

All funds generated by the Corporation are for the expressed purposes of the Corporation. All funds shall be deposited in a timely manner to the credit of the Corporation under such conditions and in such banking institutions as reasonably designated by the Board of Directors. Cash shall be counted and verified in writing by at least two members in good standing (one of which must be an Officer) prior to deposit. All checks shall require the signature of the President or the Treasurer.

A. Expenditures:

- (1) General expenditures not exceeding \$250.00 require a majority vote of the Board of Directors.
- (2) General expenditures, exceeding \$250.00 require the affirmative majority vote of the members in good standing attending an open meeting or special meeting with notice to the members.
- (3) No expense will be reimbursed without a paid receipt and approval of the Board of Directors for expenses up to \$250.00. Reimbursement in excess of \$250.00 requires a paid receipt and approval by a majority vote of the membership in good standing attending an open meeting or special meeting with notice to the members.

All financial transactions shall be conducted in such a manner as not to compromise the ability of the Corporation to perform its stated purpose. All funds received by the Corporation must be used for its stated purpose. No member, nor member of the Board of Directors may benefit personally from the activities of the Corporation including, but no limited to, financial transactions, fundraising, or payment of expenditures.

Article VIII: Fundraising

Proper accounting and verification of funds shall be conducted by a least two members (one of which must be an Officer). All fundraising activities shall be approved by a majority vote of the members.

Article IX: Amendment of By-laws

These by-laws may be amended, altered, changed or repealed by the affirmative vote, by written ballot, of two-thirds of the members in good standing in attendance at a meeting of the Corporation with notice to the members.

I, the undersigned, being the President of ROUTE 66 CRUISERS OF CLAREMORE, INC. hereby certify that the foregoing are the Bylaws of the Corporation as accepted and approved by two-thirds majority vote of the members, the statement of the corporation of the members, the statement of the corporation as accepted and approved by two-thirds majority vote of the members, the statement of the corporation as accepted and approved by two-thirds majority vote of the members, the statement of the corporation as accepted and approved by two-thirds majority vote of the members, the statement of the corporation as accepted and approved by two-thirds majority vote of the members, the statement of the corporation as accepted and approved by two-thirds majority vote of the members, the statement of the corporation as accepted and approved by two-thirds majority vote of the members, the statement of the corporation as accepted and approved by two-thirds majority vote of the members, the statement of the corporation as accepted and approved by two-thirds majority vote of the members, the statement of the corporation as accepted and approved by two-thirds majority vote of the members, the statement of the corporation as accepted and approved by the corporation as accepted and approved by two-thirds majority vote of the members, the statement of the corporation as accepted and approved by the corporation and approved by the corporation as accepted and approved by the corporation and approved by the corporation and

President

Attest:

Baylara a. Relay Secretary